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which were erected in small Maine communities befofe the Civil War. Con-
structed in 1842-43, this Academy is similar in style to two other surviving
examples in the region, Bloomfield Academy of 1840 in Skowhegan and Athens
Academy of 1846,

Hampden Academy is rgp§§§ggta;ive,9ﬁ,Qreek,Re%ig;lyeducational_buildings

Hampden Academy is rectangular in shape, stands two stories high, and
has a gable roof with a belfry at the west end. The foundation is constructed
of granite, while the remainder is brick with wood, granite, and concrete trim.

In the Greek Revival manner, one of the Academy's gable ends, the west
wall, serves as the facade. The facade is composed of three bays. On the
first story, the central bay is the location of the main entrance to the
building. Originally, this entrance consisted of a double door with an over-
light and a granite lintel above it. 1In the early twentieth century, the present
enclosed portico was added in a Greek Revival style compatible with the overall
character of the structure. The portico has a concrete base and steps, paneled
wooden front doors and side walls, and four brick piers which support a wooden
roof and balustrade. The portico is flanked on either side by a window with a .
granite sill and lintel. Like all the windows in the building, their sash has
been altered from six over six panes to two over two.

".The second ‘story of the Academy facade displays a series of three symmetrically
placed windows with a granite sill and lintel. The facade is enframed on either
side by a projecting brick corner pilaster with a wooden capital. The capital
design is based upon that of the Choragic Monument of Thrasyllus in Athens. Like-
wise, the facade entablature which extends to the two side walls is a modified
version of the Thrasyllus entablature executed in both brick and wood.

Above the entablature, the facade gable end is of brick which is outlined in
projecting wooden cornice molding to give the appearance of a Grecian pediment.
At the center of the pediment is a wooden fan, a lingering detail from the earlier
Federal Period. The design of the facade is completed by a handsome two stage
Greek Revival belfry. Each wall of the second stage bears the design of a
louvered arch flanked by pilasters which support a classical entablature.

The north and south or side walls of Hampden Academy were originally identical
in design. Four windows were symmetrically placed at the basement, first and
second story levels. While the granite foundation served as the sill for the
basement windows, the first and second story windows had granite sills and lintels.
This arrangement has survived on the north wall, but was altered on the south wall,
perhaps at the same time as the addition of the early twentieth century portico.
While the four window arrangement was retained on the south wall at the basement
and first story levels, it was changed to eight closely aligned windows on the
second. The windows of the east or rear wall were bricked in when a mid-twentieth
century addition was made to the Academy.

Hampden Academy's interior retains much of its 1840's arrangement. A foyer
and staircase are located at the west end of the building. The remainder of each
(See continuation sheet)
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floor was originally devoted to one large room. While this feature has
survived on the first story, the second story is now divided into several
small rooms. Simple Greek Revival woodwork is found throughout the structure.
The building is now the headquarters of the school's music department.

Hampden's Academy of 1842=43 has successfully survived more than a
century and a quarter as a functioning part of a secondary school. Although
now incorporated into a large complex, it retains its identity and serves
as a visible symbol of its community's educational heritage.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

As Maine's interior became settled after the American Revolution, newly
established communities founded academies for the education of their children.
Representative of this trend was Hampden, in Penobscot County, which became
incorporated as a town in 1794 and received authorization for its academy
from the Massachusetts Legislature in 1803. Maine was then a province of
Massachusetts.

In order to initiate Hampden Academy, the legislature granted the
school's board of trustees 11,040 acres of northern Maine land in what is
now Weston, Aroostook County. T his land was sold by the board in five
hundred acre lots and raised approximately three thousand dollars. With
these funds in hand, the trustees ordered the construction of a two story
frame building in 1806 which measured forty-four by thirty feet. By
the following year, the school was completed; and the preceptor, Phimeas
Johnéon, was hired. The first term in 1807 was attended by between forty-
fivé.and fifty students. : o oo

Hampden Academy's frame structure of 1806 served the school until its
destruction by fire on February 24, 1842. The board acted quickly to replace
it with the current building. On July 7, 1842, the trustees contracted with
a Mr. Stuart and a Mr. Waé}éce to erect a brick school house for $1,025.

No record has been located as to the identity of Stuart and Wallace, although
a James H. Stewart was listed as a carpenter in Hampden in the 1855 Maine
Register and Business Directory. Nor is it known whether either man
contributed to the Academy's Greek Revival design, which is similar to at
least two other academies in the region, Bloomfield of 1840 in Skowhegan

and Athens of 1846.

Forty years after receiving its charter, Hampden Acadmey opened its
present brick building in 1843. 1In 1850 the Maine Legislature granted the
school two hundred dollars with which to buy chemicals and laboratory equip-
ment. The gift proved to be a mixed blessing, for a misguided chemistry
experiment has been attributed as the cause of a fire in 1854. Fortunately,
the damage was limited to the first floor and was quickly repaired.

: Three times during the mid-nineteenth century, the Academy tried to
expand its curriculum to the college level. In 1856, it graduated four
women who had taken a course of study almost identical to Bowdoin College's

in Brunswick, then restricted to men. Between 1860 and 1862, the school
(See continuation sheet)
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offered a normal school course to prepare students for grammar and secondary
level teaching. The next year the Maine Legislature passed an act creating
two state normal schools. An attempt was made to locate one at Hampden in
connection with the Academy, but Castine and Farmington secured the schools.
After these experiences, the trustees turned their efforts soldy to grammar
and secondary education, a direction which has continued to the present.

Today Hampden Academy is a flourishing public school which has expanded
beyond its 1842 facilities. Yet it has been mindful of its early roots by
continuing to preserve and use its handsome Greek Revival brick building.

The Academy's history and its school house provide valuable insights into the
trends of Maine education and educational architecture during the nineteenth
century.



